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TMG HOLDING

Cairo, June 28, 2010

Dear Sir / Madame

Sorry for the delay to write to you but | was travelling on a business trip and have just returned. Kindly find
response to the queries that you have raised in connection with the administrative court decision of June 22,
2010 related to madinaty land sale contract that was signed between the Arab Company for Projects and Urban
Development, a subsidiary of TMG Holding (“TMG”)and the Authority of New Urban Communities (“the
authority”). Reference is also made to the various statements and clarifications that had followed by his
Excellency Mr. Ahmed Al Maghrabi, Minister of Housing and his legal advisors, Mr. Adel Naguib, Senior vice

president of the authority, and TMG Holding management and its legal advisors.

TMG’s management deemed it important to make the following clarifications:

The administrative court decision relates to the pre-contractual legal procedures (direct order vs a tender
process for land sale) and not the terms and conditions of the land sale contract itself. The contract with all
its terms and conditions remains same, valid and unchanged as per declarations made by his Excellency, the
minister of housing and the authority. From its side, the authority will file a contest /appeal before the
higher administrative court, and adjustments, if any will be limited to administrative procedures. The
authority has already started the process by filing a writ to stop the first court ruling and it shall be heard on
July 17, 2010.

This legal dispute has been ongoing among the administrative court and a number of involved ministries
since 2002. Also, this problem is not specifically pertaining to madinaty project land but extends to all land
sale transactions that were made via direct allocation order by governmental entities including the
authority of new urban communities which falls under the umbrella of the ministry of housing, the
authority of industrial development which falls under the umbrella of the ministry of industry and trade, the
authority of agricultural development which falls under the umbrella of the ministry of agriculture and the
authority of tourism development which falls under the umbrella of the ministry of tourism.

The ongoing relationship between TMG from one side and the authority from the other side is intact. There
is no dispute of any kind between the two parties. On the contrary, both parties will honor and fulfill their
respective sides of the deal. Furthermore, the project is progressing very well as planned and deliveries are
made on time.

The financial impact of the court ruling is limited to three issues: (1) a slowdown may happen in the rate of
new sales, (2)a decrease may happen in the stock trading price, (3) an increase in the rate of cancellations
of purchased units may occur; however, TMG’s management strongly believes that any disturbance in the
first two issues is only psychological /short term and will not have a significant impact on the financial
position of the Group. It happened due to announcements that were made by media of the court decision
before his Excellency, the minister of housing, the authority or the Group had the chance to make proper



clarifications to the public. As far as cancellations are concerned, we have not received any new cancellation
requests as a result of the court decision and in general, cancellations are within the normal range of
operations. Accordingly, the sales budget for 2010 will not be materially affected and no need to make any
provisions to account for the implications of that court decision.

| hope the above answers your queries and we shall keep you posted with any further developments that may
take place.

Sincerely,

Jihad M El Sawaftah

Vice President — Chief Financial Officer and
Head of Investors Relations

Attached :

Translation of his Excellency Mr. Ahmed Al Maghrabi’s press release of June 22, 2010; Translation of script relating to Mr.
Adel Naguib’s interview on Egypt Today’s Show, aired live June 22, 2010 night on national TV.

(These documents are translated from statements originally issued in Arabic and if there is any difference, the original
Arabic statements prevail.)



Translation of statement originally issued in Arabic and in case of any difference, the
Arabic statement prevails

Minister of Housing: Verdict annulling Madinaty land sale agreement neither
terminates contracts nor suspends the project

Eng. Ahmed EL-Meghraby, Minister of Housing, has stated that the verdict issued
pertaining to the land of Madinaty project does not mean termination of the contract;
instead, some corrective actions are required to be taken as regards the procedures upon
which the ruling of annulment was grounded. Therefore, such verdict does not mean the
abolition of the contract or suspension by TMG of carrying out the project.

He also pointed out that the New Urban Communities Authority (the "Authority™) is keen
to follow up step by step the implementation progress of the project's first phase, and that
the Authority started few days ago to receive the first batch of its in-kind payment, as per
the timetable mutually agreed upon between TMG and the Authority.

The legal counselor of the Ministry of Housing has asserted that the Authority will
submit an injunction on the verdict and shall contest it before the Supreme
Administrative Court to revoke and rescind it. The counselor also assured that the ruling
issued does not lead to cancellation of the contract or preventing TMG from carrying on
the project.
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Translation of statement originally issued in Arabic and in case of any difference, the Arabic
statement prevails

Misr Elnaharda (Egypt Today).. Tuesday 22-6-2010
Interviewers: Mona Al Shargawy and Tamer Amin.. Aired on Channel 2
Subject: The verdict issued by the Administrative Court of the annulment of the
sale contract of Madinaty project land
Guest : General/ Adel Naguib, Senior Vice President of the New Urban
Communities Authority

e We are discussing the verdict issued today and we are honored to host
General/ Adel Naguib, Senior Vice President of the New Urban Communities
Authority, in order to make things clear for us... Good evening, Sir.... What is
the position of the Ministry of Housing after the issuance of today's verdict
Will the concluded contract be amended? Or what?

e General/ Adel: Good evening. First let me point out that the contract entered
into by and between the New Urban Communities Authority and the Arab
Company was signed in 2005 and the execution of the project has started since
then. | would like to reassure all the buyers in Madinaty project that the
verdict is about the annulment of the contract, not termination thereof, as there
is a sharp difference between the annulment and the termination of a contract.
Today's verdict is about annulment, which means that the court found that
there were certain procedures taken during the signing of the contract that
should be amended or rectified. Accordingly, this does not mean the
termination of the contract, as the project and the company are still running
and this verdict does not pose any problem for either of them.

e Tamer Amin: Does this mean that the verdict will not cause the suspension or
stoppage of the project construction works?

e General/ Adel: No sir, the project is still ongoing and running and the
company is still operational, and the New Urban Communities Authority is
still monitoring and supervising the practical progress of the project and also
taking the legal procedures concerning today's ruling. These procedures will
start with the writ that will suspend the verdict once it is submitted, and this
will be done once we receive the verdict maximum by no later than tomorrow.

e Amin: What about the situation of the customers who reserved units? And of
course sir you can understand that they are feeling worried and anxious,
especially after the verdict.

e General/ Adel: That's why | started by reassuring them that the verdict does
not affect the contract; the contract remains in existence and the company is
still pursuing the execution of the project, and the Authority continues to
fulfill its obligations under the contract signed with the company. In addition
to that, the company has issued a statement today in which it announced its
commitment honor its obligations towards all its customers. Accordingly,
there is no need for anxiety or to panic as Madinaty is still ongoing and
existing.

e Mona Al Shargawy: Sir, let me convey another fear to you ....The fear of
amending the contract, and in such case if the land value increased, the
company would transfer the burden of such increase to the buyers.



General/ Adel: There will be no change or amendment to the contract, Pacta
sunt servanda- pacts and agreements are to be kept and respected. Therefore,
this contract is legally binding on both parties, whether these parties are the
Authority and the company, or the company and the citizens.

Al Shargawy: So, the company will not impose an increase in the
installments paid by the homeowners as a result of an increase imposed on the
Company itself?

General/ Adel: No, the Company can not do that; we are supervising the
project. The Authority enjoys the privilege of applying a special act; meaning
that the land is still in the possession of the Authority until two basic
conditions are fully met and honored: (1) full payment of the project value
representing the delivery of 7% of the total project units, and (2) 100%
completion of the project. Consequently, there should be no concerns or panic
as we are still controlling the project.

Amin: Does this mean that the Authority is the guarantor for the customers
reserving units in the project?

General/ Adel: The term “guarantor" is a legal term bearing legal
implications which I can not interpret or construct, however we are committed
to the contract signed with the Company and the terms and conditions
contained therein. On the other hand, 1 am not aware of the contract signed
between the Company and its customers.

Amin: Sir, you have pointed out that the land is still in the possession of the
Authority which is supervising or monitoring the project, so you can guarantee
that the project will be executed as per the procedures described in your
contract with Talaat Mostafa Group? And that if the Company suspended its
works in the project or did not meet its obligations, will you take the legal
actions under the contract, won't you?

General/ Adel: This is applied to all companies, not just TMG in particular.
Amin: So the buyers are not subject to any danger?

General/ Adel: Yes, the buyers are safe, and we are reassuring not only the
customers reserving units, but also the investors because the real estate sector
in Egypt was growing from 12% to 14% during the last five years. This
percentage plunged during the last economic crisis down to 5.1%, so real
estate investment is the exit from the global economic meltdown.

Amin: Sir, you are certainly aware of the effect today's verdict cast on the
Egyptian Stock Exchange with recording a decrease of approximately 3%!!!
General/ Adel: Yes, and that's why His Excellency the Minister of Housing
issued a statement in the morning to emphasize that the verdict does not mean
the termination of the contract and the project is still running. Furthermore,
we will make sure the project is still ongoing and we will take all the legal and
lawful measures as well to contest the verdict and revoke it.

Al Shargawy: Does this verdict indicate that the Authority made a mistake
and concluded the sale transaction in an illegal manner from the beginning?!
General/ Adel: The Authority did not make a mistake; it is implementing its
special act number 59 for the year 1979 concerning the establishment of the
Authority. This special law granted the Authority some advantages or
privileges regarding the method of buying and selling some lands. We do not
target land trade; but the "development of society”, and in some cases direct
allocation might be the means that will lead to development and encourage



both organizations and individuals to invest in the real estate industry.
However, in other cases, making a lot or a bid might be a better means. The
special act provides us with these different means at the discretion of the
Authority management and the board of directors, which consists of a number
of ministers who are still in office. Decision are made in light of the then
prevailing conditions in the market. Allow me to finally clarify the argument
accusing the Authority's of making a mistake during drawing up this contract
by saying that, on one hand, the Court of Cassation, which is the highest and
most superior court in the country, has stated in more than one occasion that
the special act should be the applicable law and it is the law of the New Urban
Communities Authority”. On the other hand, The Fatwa (Edicts) and
Legislation Departments of the State Council stated the contrary. So,
obviously this is a legal dispute about which law shall be implemented in the
Authority's case, and this is not surprising for us. I am not willing to comment
on today's verdict, as we all respect the jurisdiction and its provisions, I am
just clarifying the difference between termination and annulment which is
huge. Annulment is not the termination of the contract, and this is to reassure
people who misunderstood or misinterpreted the meaning of annulment.

Amin: What about the money ... Making deals on the States' lands?
General/ Adel: We are not land dealers ... Instead; we are keeping our eye on
the notion of "development™. Over the past 6 months, the New Urban
Communities Authority has injected LE 14 bn from the Authority's resources.
Basically, We are a very successful 100% state-owned authority producing a
huge surplus every year, which means that each penny we gain is injected into
the master Budget.

Amin: Regarding the belief, held by the complainant businessman initiating
the agreement annulment lawsuit, that land allocations have caused the State
to squander the opportunity to get almost LE 140 bn, was it really possible for
the State to make use of such billions?

General/ Adel: Listen, to avoid commenting on the verdict issued by the
court, I would tell you that the agreement signed by the Authority and Talaat
Moustafa Group stipulates that the Authority shall receive 7% of the total built
up area of the project, and we already started last week to receive the first
batch of those units (around 8 buildings). The Authority will get almost 7,000
units from the 1% part of the project, and if we consider the selling price per
square meter as purchased from the Company, you will find out that we have
received the land price so many many times ! Of course, I've joined the
Authority only recently, but when I went through the project file, I discovered
that the Company offered to pay the land price in cash, which translated then
into LE2,2bn ....

Amin (interrupting): To be paid over 10 years.

General/ Adel: But the Authority and its Board of Directors did not accept
that offer which seem very generous, and we insisted on acting upon the
contract.

Mona Al-Sharqgawy: Of course, because thus the Authority will be gaining
more than LE 15 bn.

General/ Adel: Thank God that the Egyptian people are the real winner in this
issue; this is an important fact that needs to be clarified because the media is



emphasizing on the idea of "throwing away or failing to take advantage of
huge public funds".

Mona Al-Shargawy: Should the Supreme Administrative Court endorsed the
ruling issued, what will be the intended scenario then?

General/ Adel: We were not surprised at the ruling, and we are currently
carrying out the scenario we planned ahead, but let's cross the bridge when we
come to it. In a same law suit completely similar to the case in question today,
The Court of Administrative Justice ruled that notwithstanding any legal or
any other errors made in the contract, such errors shall not prejudice the
continuity of the contract itself. The Authority honors its contracts and
commitments towards the investors and corporations. The verdict says that
the procedures, not the essence of the contract, taken to conclude the contract
are annulled. The main dispute here is whether those procedures was taken
according to the special act or the general one (Act No. 89 passed in 1998).
Amin: | can clearly notice that your assured of this issue ... Don't you even
have the least doubt about a possible confirmation may be ruled by the
Supreme Administrative Court?

General/ Adel: We are positive of our just position (everybody shared a
laugh).

AL-Sharkawy: We only want to reassure the worried buyers.

General/ Adel: They should rest assured.

AL-Sharkawy: What would happen in the event of confirmation of the issued
verdict?

General/ Adel (interrupting): The contract remains in continuity regardless of
the verdict, for procedural errors do not terminate the contract. Therefore, the
contract is still running in place and the project as well. Additionally, the
Authority will continue to follow up the carrying out of the project and look
after the citizens' best interest as well as the Authority's through full receipt of
the land price.

Amin: We have discussed the issue of the customers reserving units, so what
about the shareholders?

General/ Adel: The shareholders are more aware of the company and its
situation than myself, and as long as the contract is still valid and ongoing,
then the project is still ongoing, therefore the shareholders should not be
worried even if this is their sole project. Honestly, this project is really
honorable and pride-worthy, we invite you to come and visit Madinaty and the
nearby projects; dozens of projects that will definitely reassure the citizens
that the Authority is running the property of the people "the land™ in the best
manner in order to acquire the highest possible revenue. We are paying much
attention to development and we do our work with transparency, so if anyone
has an inquiry, he's welcome anytime.

Amin: Why is the Authority the one that will present the writ and not the
company responsible for the project?!!! It is as if the Authority is the defender
and the one who will benefit from that!!!

General/ Adel: We do actually benefit but from the development that will
arise from the project this company is executing; not this company only but
any serious company that will be an adding value to the country. Concerning
the writ, the lawsuit was originally raised against the Authority and against the




Minister of Housing and the Prime Minister, not against the company, so we
are the opponent or the defendant in this case.

e Amin: In the end you are the trustees of people's rights. It was an honor
having you sir, and | am reassured that you trust the verdict which will be
issued by the Supreme Administrative Court.

e General/ Adel: In the end, | would like to reassure not only the buyers of units
in this projects or the shareholders in the company, but also the real estate
market in general. We do not want any kind of shakes or disruptions in the real
estate market as it is growing in a fascinating rate, and people from all over
Egypt and the world are willing to invest in Egypt. We have a good reputation;
we have established 22 new cities in 30 years and we have also sent a
delegation to participate in a meeting with the European Union for the newly
established cities. We presented the achievements of the Authority and | can
not describe how fascinated and dazzled the audience were when they saw
what we were able to establish in 30 years.

e Amin: It is also worthy mentioning that Mr. Mohamed Ibrahim Soliman,
former Minister of Housing, was questioned regarding this contract and the
claim filed against him pertaining to this project. He pointed out that he is
very certain of the correctness of the contract which generated returns of
approximately LE 13 bn to the State.

Conclusion of interview.
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